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55 years of productive life have made minera autlán a great player in the 
ferroalloy and manganese markets. 
today, the company’s successful history continues in the making, thanks to our 
experience, strength and the preference of our customers.



4

AN
NU

AL
 RE

PO
RT

 20
08

 M
IN

ER
A 

AU
TL

ÁN



5

AN
NU

AL
 RE

PO
RT

 20
08

 M
IN

ER
A 

AU
TL

ÁN



6

AN
NU

AL
 RE

PO
RT

 20
08

 M
IN

ER
A 

AU
TL

ÁN

HIGHLIGHTS
F I N A N C I A L

Results

Net Sales
Gross Profit
Operating Profit
Operating Margin
Net Revenue/Loss
Net Margin
    
EBITDA (1)  
(1) Operating Profit + Depreciation and Amortization  
EBITDA Margin      

Balance sheet   
Current Assets
Total Assets
Debt with Cost
Net Debt
Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity   

Financial Ratio    
EBITDA / Net Interests (times)
Debt with Cost / EBITDA (times)

2008

5,373.9
2,676.8
2,268.1

42%
683.1
13%

2,423.3

45%

2,204.4
4,826.4

612.0
-322.7

2,117.8
2,708.6

35.6
0.3

2007

2,461.7
822.3
516.3
21%

402.9
16%

629.8

26%

979.8
3,346.5

352.1
126.0

1,224.5
2,122.0

10.7
0.6

2006

1,657.6
333.2

77.7
5%

31.4
2%

176.8

11%

613.9
2,753.7

169.0
149.8
877.9

1,875.8

3.9
1.0

(Millions of constant pesos as of December 2008)
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NET SALES

08 • 5,373.9

07 • 2,461.7

06 • 1,657.6

EBITDA MARGIN

08 • 45%

07 • 26%

06 • 11%

TOTAL ASSETS

08 • 4,826.4

07 • 3,346.5

06 • 2,753.7

(Millions of constant pesos as of December 2008)

Stack, Molango Industrial Zone
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 2008 was a year to remember for Minera Autlán with 
the celebration of the Company’s 55th anniversary. Today, we can 
look back proudly on fifty-five years at the forefront of the Mexican 
manganese industry and recall our many contrasting experiences: 
challenges, worries, satisfactions, crises, expansions, contractions and 
growth. I believe that our Company now shares the characteristics of 
other large organizations: identity, evolution and innovation. 
 Minera Autlán was founded in 1953 with Mexican capital 
and backed by a strong commitment to the nation’s development, 
which has never diminished over the years. From its origins as a sim-
ple mining company, it has evolved into a vertically integrated mining 
and steel-related organization with a significant presence throughout 
Mexico and internationally. Since the very beginning, one of Minera 
Autlán’s distinguishing features has been the constant innovation of 
its technical and administrative personnel. This has allowed the Com-
pany to remain on solid ground with an offering of globally unique 
products and processes.
 The anniversary has led us to reflect on Minera Autlán’s 
contributions to the industry, as well as on our expectations for the 
future. 
I can confidently say that Minera Autlán has infused trust and cer-
tainty into the nation’s development, since, thanks to the manganese 
it extracts from the core of the earth and processes with state-of-
the-art technology, Mexico’s steel industry has been able to prog-

ress. With the Company’s manganese, the domestic steel production 
rate increased fivefold from the ’60s to the present day, contributing 
strongly to the growth in the nation’s GDP.
 Going forward, we plan to continue playing a leading role 
in Mexico’s development and to consolidate the national manganese 
industry through the technological innovation we are sponsoring and 
the expansion of our Company beyond the country’s borders. Crossing 
the time barrier, we look forward to becoming a centennial company 
in Mexico, a generator of employment, wellbeing and growth. 
Apart from our anniversary, 2008 has been a year of the greatest con-
trasts in the Company’s history. 
 Thanks to the support of all our employees, the strategies 
implemented since Grupo Ferrominero (GFM) took over the Company 
in 1993 and the unique market conditions, the first three quarters of 
2008 represented the best period ever in Minera Autlán’s existence in 
terms of revenue, margins, profit and share price. This positive result 
stemmed from the solid financial and productive structure that re-
flects our many years of hard work. 
 However, the financial crisis that affected the world in the 
third quarter of the year and spread to become a global economic cri-
sis hit the steel industry very hard and also began to affect the man-
ganese market, resulting in a significant fall in international ferroalloy 
prices at the end of 2008. 

THE CHAIRMAN
M E S S A G E  F R O M
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 Despite this situation, Minera Autlán’s operations and fi-
nances reached record levels during the year, far surpassing the figures 
for 2007 and the budget in several areas. Efficiency was a constant 
feature in every activity and the reinforcement of our refined ferroal-
loy installed capacity was one of the year’s major accomplishments 
that not even the economic downturn at the end of the year could 
tarnish. 
 One of the challenges the Company faced during the year 
was the negative effect of derivative financial instruments losses in 
the third quarter. However, this issue was addressed quickly and ef-
fectively, minimizing its effect. 
 As we move forward, our response to the adverse situation 
faced by Mexico and the entire world will be to continue to reduce 
risks by boosting our work, adjusting production to the market and 
minimizing our costs. Our flexibility in adapting to the market, by in-
creasing or decreasing our production, is a great source of strength in 
face of the uncertain panorama of the future. 
 During 2008, with the support of our holding company, 
we made significant progress with the construction of a hydroelec-
tric plant in the Mexican state of Puebla. The generation of our own 
energy will translate, by 2010, into a reduction in our dependence 
on elevated public rates and the improvement of our ferroalloy cost 
structure. 

What is the ultimate 
meaning of the efforts, 
sWeat and courage of all the 
men and Women Who made 
it possible for the company 
to cross the threshold of the 
21st century? i am certain 
that the quest for good, in 
the highest meaning of the 
Word, is the best ansWer.
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 Additionally, we continued to make important progress 
with a project to enhance the quality of our manganese, which should 
produce tangible results in the short to medium term. 
 In 2008, we also reviewed different forward and/or back-
ward integration options, as well as several diversification projects, in 
metals and/or ores. We are aware that the Company needs to grow 
and develop, which is why we will be continuing with these efforts. 
 I trust that 2009 results will be positive, since long-term 
demand for both steel and manganese will be upheld by global de-
mographic growth. We will face 2009 with tenacity and decisiveness, 
capitalizing on our strengths in preparation for the next phase of the 
economic cycle. 
 The current environment –not just financially speaking– 
demands an even greater effort to preserve our natural resources and 
contribute to the sustainable saving of the goods and resources that 
we all should be safeguarding. We must acknowledge that, through-
out time, it is nature itself that has given us life; learning to respect 
it will be propitious and key to our existence. In this context, Minera 
Autlán has been developing a Wildlife Conservation Management 
Unit at a ranch called “La Herradura” (the Horseshoe), protecting the 
region’s native flora and fauna. Moreover, the Company is going to 
sponsor a Golden Eagle (the Mexican national emblem) Protection 

Minera Autlán Headquarters in Garza García, N.L. 
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Program, through PRONATURA (a non-profit organization dedicated 
to preserving Mexico’s biodiversity), in an effort to avoid the immi-
nent extinction of this symbolic bird. 
 These actions are closely related to the Company’s deci-
sion to make the areas in which it operates long-term, sustainable 
communities. A very concrete way of showing this will be through 
the maximization of the use of one of Minera Autlán’s favorite assets: 
the Otongo guesthouse at the Molango mining unit. Nestling in one 
of the country’s most beautiful landscapes, the house, that has been 
converted into a hotel, was remodeled and adapted during 2008 and 
will open its doors to the general public in 2009 as a world-class spa. 
This infrastructure will live side by side with nature in complete har-
mony, transmitting its benefits to its visitors in an authentic win-win 
relationship. 
 Our willpower and fortitude have persisted since 1953 and 
are still with us today; courage, professionalism and excellence exist 
at each and every one of our mines, plants and offices. Our experience 
of previous crises and the strength we gained in 2008 have readied us 
to face any contingency and to continue persevering. 
 Without doubt, 2008 was a year of striking contrasts and 
challenges. 2009 also promises to be a difficult year for the industry, 
but our accomplishments will continue to be built on the basis of our 
daily work and the decisions we make, since we see the future as a 
book full of blank pages waiting to be filled. 
 In order to construct this promising future, we must stop 
for a while to reflect and look back on the Company’s history, over a 
track record that spans more than half a century. 
 What is the ultimate meaning of the efforts, sweat and 
courage of all the men and women who made it possible for the 
Company to cross the threshold of the 21st century? I am certain that 
the quest for GOOD, in the highest meaning of the word, is the best 
answer. 

 Leaving to one side the ambiguities that are so common to 
mankind, we must remember that we are all striving toward a com-
mon objective, which should not just lead to personal satisfaction or 
gain, but also to bettering ourselves morally and doing our best for 
institutions and society and, thus, for our country. 
 Beyond mere words, this implies living a lifestyle with an 
extremely strong moral commitment that will prevent us from doing 
wrong, something that unfortunately the business world often toler-
ates, viewing such actions as acceptable when they are clearly not 
so. Fortunately, Minera Autlán’s ethical foundation is strong and our 
continuous self-discipline readies us to seek goodness above all else. 
It is time to assess what we have built and to act on the basis of the 
principles instilled in us by our parents and our faith, and thus con-
struct a better future. 
 Finally, I would like to reiterate my deepest gratitude to 
all the people who have contributed to the renown of Minera Autlán 
over these fifty-five years, our stockholders, customers, suppliers and, 
in particular, all of those faces shining with courage and enthusiasm 
that make up the great MINERA AUTLÁN’s family.

Congratulations,

José Antonio Rivero
Chairman of the Board
April 2009



12

AN
NU

AL
 RE

PO
RT

 20
08

 M
IN

ER
A 

AU
TL

ÁN

      THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

M E S S A G E  F R O M

 The economic setting surrounding Minera Autlán’s op-
erations in 2008 will undoubtedly go down in history as the most 
contrasting and unprecedented set of events of all times for the steel 
and manganese industries. During this period, the prices and global 
demand for manganese products reached their highest point and 
then suddenly contracted. 
 After rising to historic levels during the first nine months 
of the year, the international prices of manganese products began to 
plummet in October and by December were over 50% lower than the 
2008 peak. 
 In parallel with prices, global and domestic demand sud-
denly contracted in the final months of 2008, postponing the ambi-
tious expansion plans that both the steel industry and manganese 
producers still viewed as feasible in September. 
 As circumstances about-faced, the first ever organized re-
sponse of the global manganese industry was immediate, with play-
ers worldwide reacting with major cuts in supply to avoid an even 
greater plunge in prices and to prepare the road for the adjustments 
that would be required to adapt to the demand in 2009.
 In Mexico, the growth of steel production was sound and 
sustained until July, every month breaking one historical record after 
another. However, in August, the volume manufactured in the coun-

try started to drop, reaching levels that had not been seen since 2001. 
This had a direct impact on our ferroalloy sales, resulting in two com-
pletely opposite trends in the year. 
 During the first three quarters of 2008, the Company 
achieved its best results ever, in both sales volumes and revenue. Al-
though the environment favored this success, I would like to make it 
clear that apart from the international rally in prices and growth of 
the steel industry, the results obtained were the outcome of the hard 
work of the Company’s operating personnel and of a series of strate-
gies that management skillfully implemented. 
 In contrast, the last quarter of 2008 was marked by a sub-
stantial, adverse change in market conditions, which, of course, affect-
ed our revenues and profits. Both domestic and global steel producers 
drastically reduced their monthly production volumes and, therefore, 
their consumption of ferroalloys. Minera Autlán reacted quickly to 
this environmental change and, taking advantage of its characteris-
tic operational flexibility, suspended operations at the Gómez Palacio 
plant in November, and in December reduced ferroalloy production at 
the Teziutlán and Tamós plants by approximately 40% compared to 
the average for the first nine months of the year. Production was also 
adjusted at the Molango mining unit (manganese) and at the sinter 
plant.
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 In short, Minera Autlán worked at 100% capacity for a 
large part of the year in response to the growing demand for man-
ganese products and then its production dropped to adjust to falling 
market demand in the last quarter.
 In the mining division, the opening of the Tajo Naopa mine, 
the acquisition of new equipment and the improvement of the crush-
ing circuit considerably strengthened the operations of the Molango 
unit, which posted a 12% increase in manganese carbonate produc-
tion compared to 2007, despite the downturn in the last quarter of 
the year. Moreover, Minera Autlán continued to export manganese 
nodules to Venezuela during 2008. Such exports reflect our efficient, 
clean production platform, which is a result of the renovation of the 
rotary kiln’s transformers, amongst other improvements that have 
been made to equipment and infrastructure. Additionally, a new kiln 
for manganese oxide production was installed at the Nonoalco unit, 
thus increasing our capacity and efficiency. 
 In the ferroalloy division, one of the most important 
achievements of our workforce was the start-up of the second MOR 
plant, making Minera Autlán a global leader in refined ferromanga-
nese production. This strategic investment responds to growing world 
demand for high value-added steel and the trend towards the con-
sumption of medium and low carbon ferromanganese.

2009 Will be a year of difficult 
challenges because of the 
prospects of a global economic 
recession, but We are fully 
confident that We Will resolve any 
difficulties that might arise. 
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  In this regard, I take great pride in pointing out that, de-
spite the market adjustment at the end of the year, in 2008 Minera 
Autlán achieved the greatest ferroalloy production volume in the his-
tory of the Company, surpassing 2007’s figure by 15%.
 Company management is also extremely proud of the im-
portant improvements in safety and operating efficiency that were 
implemented at the Tamós, Teziutlán and Gómez Palacio plants.
 Sales and production efforts were reflected in Minera Autlán’s 
robust, sound financial position, with the Company posting histori-
cal records in revenues, operating income, EBITDA and net income 
in 2008, far surpassing the figures for 2007 and the budget in many 
areas. Despite this, the Company is facing a loss resulting from third-
quarter derivative financial instruments operations, the net effect of 
which was minimized by the Company’s rapid, coherent reaction. 
 With regard to labor relations, Minera Autlán continued 
to operate with its characteristic climate of cordiality with both non-
union and union personnel at all levels. The Company maintained 
good relations with the Union and its workers throughout the year, 
ensuring that operations were not suspended for union-related rea-
sons. 
 I am delighted to inform you that in the Company’s battle 
against unfair trade practices, in 2008 the authorities reconfirmed the 
anti-dumping duties applied to Ukrainian silicomanganese imports 

Minera Autlán Headquarters in Garza García, N.L. 
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since 2003. These duties had been contested since 2004 by one of 
the importers, but after a very prolonged lawsuit, the Mexican gov-
ernment decided to continue protecting domestic industry from such 
harmful import practices. In addition, in the last quarter of the year, 
the renewal processes for both these duties and those on high carbon 
ferromanganese imported from China were initiated in order to ex-
tend their coverage for another five years. We hope to see the results 
of this course of action during 2009. 
 Minera Autlán has been deeply committed to sustainable 
development and social responsibility since its founding and we have 
continuously allocated resources for environmental protection and 
community relations. 
 According to the International Manganese Institute, man-
ganese is essential for ensuring good health and wellbeing in both 
humans and animals. Based on this principle, and unlike many other 
elements in the mining and steel industries, the manganese produced 
by Minera Autlán clearly benefits rather than harms the environment 
given its multifaceted qualities as a fertilizer and micronutrient, 
among many others. 
 In this context, during 2008, the mining division focused 
its efforts on reforestation and the implementation of diverse actions 
to improve air, water and soil quality, considerably reducing its gen-
eration of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. 
 In the field of social responsibility, through a multi-mil-
lion-peso investment, the Company directly supported the Nonoalco, 
Naopa, Chiconcoac, Ixcotla, Chipoco and Ixmolintla communities, 
among others in the Mexican state of Hidalgo, with the building of 
infrastructure, providing of medical services and, in particular, refor-
estation, thus improving their quality of life and development. 
 For the ferroalloy division, environmental protection is also 
a priority, especially in relation to atmospheric particulate emissions, 
with all plants complying fully with official standards. Furthermore, 

all askarel (chlorinated aromatic hydrocarbon) capacitors were re-
moved from the Teziutlán plant. In fact, the PROFEPA (Mexican En-
vironmental Protection Agency) in Puebla praised this facility for its 
standards of cleanliness.
 In addition, the three ferroalloy plants carried out diverse 
actions in favor of their respective neighboring communities through 
donations and support in infrastructure and cleanup in the surround-
ing areas. 
 Finally, we would like to confirm that Minera Autlán, with-
in the framework of the Company’s 55th anniversary, made the most 
of the opportunities that arose in 2008 and acted promptly and deci-
sively in face of the market changes, as can be seen from the superb 
operating and financial results presented in this report. All of this has 
been made possible by the extraordinary Minera Autlán team and I 
would like to reiterate my appreciation for all the personnel that work 
in this outstanding company. 
 We believe that 2009 will be a year of difficult challenges 
because of the prospects of a global economic recession, but we are 
fully confident that, by using our vast experience and creativity, we 
will resolve any difficulties that might arise in order to be worthy of 
the trust that you, our stockholders, have placed in us. 

José H. Madero
CEO
April 2009
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GLOBAL STEEL PRODUCTION
MILLIONS OF MTs

08 • 1,326.9

07 • 1,351.2

06 • 1,251.0

05 • 1,146.7

the dynamism of the 
steel industry observed 
in 2007 carried over 
into the first half 
of 2008, producing 
record levels in 
demand, supply and, 
above all, prices.

Ferromanganese Refining Process (MOR) 

Source: WSA
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ECONOMIC
O U T L O O K

STEEL
 2008 was a year of great contrasts for the global steel in-
dustry, with international prices growing stronger in the first months 
of the year until they reached a historical high, which was followed by 
a sudden, rapid, completely unforeseeable plunge at the end of the 
year.
 The dynamism of the steel industry observed in 2007 car-
ried over into the first half of 2008, producing record levels in demand, 
supply and, above all, prices. China was at the forefront of this trend, 
followed by practically every other region in the world. However, the 
Beijing Olympics held in August marked a turning point, triggering a 
slowdown of the growth observed until that month. The environmen-
tal restrictions surrounding the Olympics diminished China’s indus-
trial growth, particularly in steel production. Then, the financial crisis 
in the United States, which later became a global economic crisis, set 
off a domino effect that slashed global steel demand and prices.  
 In the last quarter of the year, international steel produc-
ers decided to tackle the increase in inventories resulting from the 
rapid drop in demand through supply reductions, in an endeavor to 
assuage the drop in prices. As a result, in 2008, the upward course of 
global steel production was halted and production volume fell short 
of that of 2007. 

 Mexico’s steel industry reacted in a similar manner, with 
steel plants cutting their production to different extents – in some 
cases by more than 50% – in the fourth quarter of the year. The in-
dustry was caught up in the global economic recession, which was 
reflected in lower steel consumption, stemming from the drop in the 
nation’s industrial production and the decrease in its exports. This new 
reality temporarily put a stop to the ambitious domestic installed ca-
pacity expansion program, which had continued until as late as Sep-
tember 2008.

Combustion chamber of the battery-grade manganese 
dioxide drying kiln. Nonoalco Unit

DOMESTIC STEEL PRODUCTION 
MILLIONS OF MTs

08 • 17.22

07 • 17.56

06 • 16.45

05 • 16.19

Source: CANACERO
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MANGANESE
 The boom in the steel market in the first half of the year, 
together with the market’s economic characteristics, contributed to 
the increase in international ferroalloy and manganese ore prices to 
the highest levels registered in the entire history of the industry.
 The greater demand for manganese ore, combined with 
the Chinese ferroalloy industry’s difficulties in guaranteeing its su-
pply, drove that country’s spot price to a level of US$18.4 dollars/mtu 
midyear, which translates into a 225% increase over the average price 
for 2007. As a result of this upswing in the ore market, the benchmark 
price in Japan was no longer set on a yearly basis, but was reviewed 
quarterly, closing 2008 551% above that of 2007. 
 The elevated manganese ore prices, together with the 
worldwide escalation in electricity and coke prices, strengthened 
manganese ferroalloy prices to unimaginable levels by the middle of 
the year. 
 The market balance was also influenced by unforeseen 
circumstances, such as technical failures at some of our competi-
tors’ plants and a severe energy crisis in several countries involved in 
manganese production, which limited global supply and favored the 
unprecedented rise in prices. 

 Nevertheless, this tendency expired in the last quarter 
when the global economy began to contract. Alloy prices were rapidly 
adjusted downwards in the last months of the year, closing more than 
50% below the 2008 peak. Despite this adjustment, average prices 
for 2008 were the highest ever in history. 
 Echoing the steel plants, ferroalloy and manganese produ-
cers all over the world decided to reduce their supply in an agile, or-
ganized manner, with the clear objective of avoiding a greater plunge 
in prices and even worse turmoil in the international marketplace.

MOR ladle after slag removal

BENCHMARK PRICE OF MN ORE IN JAPAN
US$/MTU (year end)

08 • 16.49

07 • 2.70

06 • 3.01

05 • 3.99

Source: The TEX Report

SPOT PRICE OF MC FeMn IN THE USA
US$/MT (year average)

08 • 3,668.45

07 • 1,768.88  

06 • 1,186.36 

05 • 1,034.52 

Source: Ryan’s Notes
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elevated manganese ore prices, together With the 
escalation in electricity and coke prices, strengthened 
manganese ferroalloy prices to unimaginable levels. 

Inclined conveyer belt to feed raw 
materials into furnances 9 and 10
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carbonate production increased 
12% year-over-year.

the operating efficiency of the nodulization 
process exceeded that of previous years and 
Was above the budget.

Workers at the Molango Mining Unit

Unloading hoppers for the conveyer belt in the Coyoles yard
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UNDERGROUND MINE
 The opening of the Tajo Naopa mine, together with the 
extraction of ore from the underground mine, allowed us to produce 
nodules with a 37.52% manganese content. This mix also contributed 
to the Company obtaining the desired ore volume, despite the time 
involved in preparing the underground mine. 
 During the year, the Company acquired several assets that 
will result in improved mining work over the next few years. 
 The 2008 carbonate production volume exceeded forecasts 
by 7% and was 16% above blast hole cuttings.
 The crushing circuit was modified in order to produce si-
multaneously: carbonates for the kiln, carbonates for steel production 
and carbonates for sinter, thus eliminating downtimes.
 The Company was fully able to meet the excessive demand 
for carbonates required by our steel customers, surpassing the original 
program by 31%. 
 Sinter carbonate production was sufficient to meet the de-
mand of the Tamós sinter plant.

MINING

NODULIZING
 Continuing with the Company’s constant efforts to keep 
the environment clean, equipment at this industrial unit, such as the 
transformers of the rotary kiln, was renovated, with the clear objec-
tive of eliminating any polluting emissions and thereby fully com-
plying with official environmental regulations. The equipment and 
infrastructure renewal has resulted in energy savings at the unit, as 
well as enhanced operational efficiency. 
 The operational efficiency of the nodulizing process ex-
ceeded all the previous years’ records and the budget plan. 

NONOALCO
 The manganous oxide plant has a new kiln that will ex-
pand its installed capacity and improve its production efficiency. The 
kiln will allow us to meet our customers’ deadline and volume com-
mitments. 

Production of manganous oxide. Nonoalco Unit

the manganous oxide plant has a neW kiln that 
Will expand its installed capacity and improve 
its production efficiency. 

Low-profile truck loading. Production of manganese carbonates at the 
Molango underground mine
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furnace no. 13 at the tamós plant underWent 
some modifications, resulting in a 12% groWth in 
its production volume. 

Stacks at the sinterizing plant
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TAMÓS
 During the year, the second MOR plant began operating, 
increasing medium carbon ferromanganese production capacity from 
68,000 to 104,000 tonnes per year. This action places Minera Autlán 
at the forefront of refined ferromanganese production worldwide. 
 Furnace No. 13 underwent some modifications, particular-
ly in its electrical design, resulting in a 12% growth in its production 
volume. 
 The production capacity of the Tamós nitriding plant rose 
30% as a result of the adaptation of a number of its furnace compo-
nents. 
 Since safety at Minera Autlán production facilities is a great 
priority, each and every one of the plant employees and workers had 
to complete the course “Our Next Step Zero Accidents.” The Company 
also signed a voluntary commitment with the Mexican Department 
of Labor to establish an Occupational Health and Safety Management 
System. 

TEZIUTLÁN
 For the first time in its history, the Teziutlán plant success-
fully operated several kilns during the “rush hour,” thus increasing 
production and profit. Additionally, because of the very high prices 
of raw materials the Company faced during the year, material mixes 
were created that helped to reduce their impact on production costs. 
 In the area of safety, the annual accident rate dropped 60% 
and a program was implemented with the Mexican Social Security 
Institute (IMSS) to conduct health check-ups for all personnel, thus 
helping to detect and control any diseases they might have.
 The Company eliminated practically all the unsafe con-
ditions that had been identified, purchased a new ambulance, and 
provided practical and theoretical training in firefighting, first aid, 
evacuation procedures and rescue, among other activities. 
 Additionally, all employees completed the course “Our 
Next Step Zero Accidents.”

FERROALLOYS

Refining ladle of ferromanganese
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GÓMEZ PALACIO
 The Gómez Palacio plant started to use fine-grain carbon 
in order to reduce production costs, and the plant’s manganese metal 
recovery surpassed the annual plan by 2%.
 Without halting the plant’s operations, the Company im-
proved some of its installations, resulting in cleaner and better orga-
nized work areas.   
 The plant also offered the course “Our Next Step Zero Ac-
cidents” and a technical-practical course on order and cleanliness, the 
results of which were reflected in the plant. 

MOR II processing plant

West-side bay at the MOR plant 
(MOR II expansion)

Training area and cafeteria. Tamós plant
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the second mor plant came on line, increasing annual 
production capacity from 68,000 to 104,000 tons of refined 
ferroalloys.
the installed capacity of the nitriding plant greW 30%.

record
for the first time, total annual production of ferroalloys passed the 
200 thousand ton barrier.

NEW CAPACITy AT 
THE TAMóS PLANT
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Tamós Plant
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in 2008, the company 
consolidated its manganous 
oxide sales in neW markets, 
such as the czech republic, 
slovakia, hungary, 
austria, russia, indonesia, 
argentina and peru. 
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COMMERCIAL

FERROALLOYS
 In 2008, Minera Autlán faced a considerable demand for 
ferroalloys, stemming from an increase in steel production, particu-
larly during the first nine months of the year. This was reflected in a 
substantial growth in both annual sales volumes and revenue.  
 However, the market changed in the last quarter of the 
year, reflecting the global economic recession, which resulted in a 
contraction in the steel industry because of the existence of large in-
ventories of finished products and raw materials. 
 Nevertheless, the Company maintained its majority share 
of the domestic ferroalloy market, as well as its participation in the 
international refined product markets in India, Europe and South 
America. 

METALLURGIC MANGANESE ORE
 During 2008, mining sales benefitted from the demand 
for a greater volume of carbonates for the steel industry. Moreover, 
manganese nodules were exported to Venezuela with the Company 
benefitting from the favorable price of manganese ore that prevailed 
during 2008. 

MANGANESE DERIvATIvES
 In 2008, the Company consolidated its manganous oxide 
sales in new markets, such as the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Hungary, 
Austria, Russia, Indonesia, Argentina and Peru. 
 Just like the majority of raw materials, manganous oxide 
was in great demand during the first three quarters of the year, but 
the financial-economic crisis in the last quarter led to a sharp con-
traction in demand. In face of the current adverse conditions, we are 
emphasizing the special characteristics of our material, which differ-
entiate us from the competition. 
 Furthermore, Minera Autlán registered with SAGARPA (the 
Mexican Department of Agriculture, Livestock, Rural Development, 
Fisheries and Food) as a producer of raw materials for making bal-
anced foods, in order to comply with this sector’s legal provisions and 
to continue our efforts to penetrate new markets in Thailand, China 
and Israel. 
 The ceramic grade sales volume far surpassed expectations, 
with sales to foreign markets growing significantly and offsetting the 
fall in domestic consumption. 
 Our international presence in the supply of battery-grade 
manganese dioxide continued throughout 2008 and is expected to be 
maintained in 2009. 

 MOR refining ladle

A C T I V I T I E S
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MARKETING
 
 During the year, several technical commercial meetings 
were held for the country’s main steel producers in order to strength-
en business relations and determine their degree of satisfaction with 
our products. Following tradition, these fruitful meetings were held at 
the Company’s production facilities, allowing everyone to get to know 
each other better and develop a mutual loyalty. 
 Minera Autlán’s institutional image was maintained 
throughout 2008 with the following messages being published in di-
verse national and international specialized journals: “Firm Step,” “The 
key part of the best steel in the world,” “Different steels, one spirit,” 
“Steel’s best ally,” “Successful fulfillment,” and “55 years of commit-
ment to the steel sector.” A video documentary about the Teziutlán 
plant was also produced.
 The Company participated actively in the International 
Manganese Institute, the Mexican National Chamber of the Iron and 
Steel Industry, Coparmex (Mexican employers’ association) and the 
Mining Chamber of Mexico, in which it continued to preside over the 
Customs Commission. The Company also strengthened its relations 
with the SAT (tax authorities), who were invited to tour the Molango 
mining unit. 

 A system was established to periodically monitor articles 
on the Company in the press, and the bases of Minera Autlán’s corpo-
rate identity manual were updated. 
 In 2008, the anti-dumping duties that the Mexican gov-
ernment imposed in 2003 on Chinese high carbon ferromanganese 
and Ukrainian silicomanganese imports were the object of a five-
yearly review by the authorities in order to determine the feasibility of 
extending them for another five years. 
 Investigators analyzed the current conditions and reached 
the conclusion that the country would still be at risk if these duties 
were abolished. Therefore, they recommended that the Federal Gov-
ernment continue with its dumping studies with a view to renewing 
the anti-dumping duties. 

the mexican federal government put an end to the prolonged 
legal process contesting the anti-dumping duties they had applied to 
chinese simn, ruling in favor of minera autlán and confirming the 
application of the duties.

Materials warehouse
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 In September, the authorities published 
a notice in the Official Journal of the Federation of 
the formal commencement of the examination of 
both dumping cases, and we expect this investiga-
tion to be concluded by the end of 2009. Mexico’s 
manganese industry will be protected by the duties 
established in 2003 until the review process is com-
pleted. 
 In relation to the topic of anti-dumping, 
in March, the Mexican Federal Government pub-
lished in the Official Journal of the Federation the 
resolution that puts an end to a long lawsuit begun 
in 2004 by an importer who never agreed to the 
duties applied to silicomanganese from the Ukraine. 
The authorities ruled in favor of the domestic fer-
roalloy industry, confirming the application of such 
duties.

Sacking of ferroalloys 
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HUMAN
R E S O U R C E S

 2008 was characterized by the dynamic activity of foreign 
mining companies, which led to the emigration of a significant num-
ber of Mexican experts in the field to overseas firms, in nations such 
as Canada. However, the measures adopted by Minera Autlán allowed 
us to retain our non-union staff and thus achieve the goals set for the 
year. 
 Moreover, with regard to the Company’s union person-
nel, there was a climate of cordiality between Minera Autlán and the 
workers and their representatives, which meant that production ac-
tivities were able to continue uninterruptedly throughout the year. 

Administrative offices in the Molango Industrial Zone

Personnel operating the nodulizing kiln
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the measures adopted by minera autlán 
alloWed us to retain our non-union staff 
in an environment Where mexican mining 
professionals Were leaving the country.

Personnel from the underground mine in the Coyoles yard
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SOCIAL
R E S P O N S I B I L I T y

MINING
 Minera Autlán is permanently committed to the sustain-
able development of the regions in which its plants and units are 
located. In 2008, it carried out a variety of actions in this area, in par-
ticular:
 The Molango unit significantly reduced dust in the pro-
cessing and transfer zones by paving the most heavily trafficked areas 
with hydraulic concrete. 
 17,000 trees were planted in the surrounding areas and 
neighboring communities as part of the Company’s permanent refor-
estation program and its commitment to the environment. 
 Environmental restoration and mitigation programs were 
implemented in relation to the Tajo Naopa and Tajo Acuatitla projects. 
Additionally, the Company focused considerable resources on improv-
ing air quality at the Molango unit and there are several ongoing proj-
ects for improving water treatment efficiency. 
 Finally, the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous 
waste was reduced considerably through a successful recycling and 
classification program implemented throughout the mining unit. 

SUSTAINABLE
D E V E L O P M E N T

“Bartolomé de Medina” School in Otongo, Hidalgo
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 With regard to community relations, we have devoted 
great time and effort to continue enhancing the help we have tra-
ditionally proffered to developing the neighboring towns. The most 
outstanding initiatives of 2008 include:
• Construction of approximately 5,000 m2 of hydraulic concrete streets 

in the Naopa and Nonoalco communities, with an approximate in-
vestment of two million pesos.

• Construction of a fence around the public areas in the Chiconcoac 
community, with an investment of 600 thousand pesos.

• In conjunction with the Hidalgo state government, the project for 
paving the Tlaxcango – Naopa highway was finalized, and work 
will begin during the first few months of 2009, with an initial con-
tribution of over two million pesos. 

• Support with machinery and equipment to adapt the public areas in 
the Ixcotla community. 

• Permanent provision of medical services and medication in the 
Chipoco community, with an investment of 600 thousand pesos.

• Support with machinery to remove landslides and blockages result-
ing from regional hurricanes. 

• Construction of almost two miles of highway to support the com-
munities in the Molango township in Hidalgo, with an investment 
of 400 thousand pesos.

• Support to refurbish the Ixmolintla community’s school, with an 
investment of 100 thousand pesos.

• Support for the region’s reforestation programs, with 10,000 trees 
donated for planting in its communities, towns, institutions and 
small properties. 

construction of approximately 5000 m2 of 
hydraulic concrete streets in the naopa and 
nonoalco communities, With an approximate 
investment of tWo million pesos.
permanent provision of medical services and 
medication in the chipoco community.

Wastewater treatment
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17,000 trees Were planted in the areas surrounding the company’s 
production facilities as part of its permanent reforestation program and 
commitment to the environment. 

in the area of community support, the company made donations to different regional 
celebrations and invited people from surrounding neighborhoods to tour one of its 
plants and see conditions there for themselves. “fine” slag Was also donated to repair 
some school zones.  

Panoramic view of the Otongo, Hidalgo mountains

Road to Molango Industrial Zone
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FERROALLOYS
 At the Tamós plant:
 The Company participated on the Fire Department Reno-
vation Committee of Pánuco, Veracruz, with very positive results for 
the community. 
 Over 28,000 ft3 of protective covering material was trans-
ported to the rural villages of Ochoa and la Angostura, Veracruz, to 
solve and restore communication during the July and August floods. 
 The Company joined the Board of Trustees of the Techno-
logical Institute of Pánuco, Veracruz, to facilitate internships and pro-
vide support in training. 
 During 2008, the facility’s resources were used to continue 
clearing an almost two mile section of the Tamós - Minera Autlán 
highway and an almost 500-foot stretch of road on the outskirts of 
“La Barrita” in Tamós, Veracruz.
 At the Teziutlán plant:
 Several community outreach activities were carried out, in 
particular:
1. Participation in the Teziutlán Fair, through donations and with a 

stand. 
2. Donation of garbage bins to different schools in the community.
3. Donation of slag to repair some of the rural roadways.
 In environmental matters, the Teziutlán plant completed 
a voluntary environmental audit to earn Clean Industry Certification 
from the Mexican environmental authorities. For the seventh succes-
sive year, the results of the peripheral monitoring process complied 
with official standards. Furthermore, 100% of the capacitors contain-
ing askarels were removed. The Puebla branch of the PROFEPA (Mexi-
can Environmental Protection Agency) congratulated the facility for 
the considerable improvements to its appearance and cleanliness that 
it had made in response to the agency’s prior observations. 
 At the Gómez Palacio plant:
 The wastewater processing facility was repaired and modi-
fied, and a source of dust emissions from the raw material conveyer 
belts was eliminated. 
 Isokinetic analyses of the chimney dust and peripheral 
evaluations of the suspended particulate matter in the air were made, 
with the results meeting official standards in both cases. 
 With regard to the community, donations were made for 
diverse regional celebrations and the neighbors were invited to tour 
the plant so that they could see the conditions there for themselves, 
among other benefits. “Fine” slag was also donated to repair some of 
the school zones.  

Students at the “Bartolomé de Medina” School in Otongo, Hidalgo

Ambulance of the Otongo Medical Service
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and renovate the otongo guesthouse, in order to convert it 
into a self-sustaining tourist resort called sterra, meaning 
“land of destiny”.

Aerial view of the new STERRA Hotel
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 During 2008, the Company made a great effort to remodel 
and renovate the Otongo guesthouse at the Molango mining unit, in 
order to convert it into a self-sustaining tourist resort as a Hotel-Spa 
called STERRA, meaning “Land of Destiny”.
 Originally constructed to house Company employees who 
went to work at or visit the Molango unit, this property is being re-
furbished and will be open to members of the general public who are 
interested in improving their health, relaxing and reconnecting with 
nature. 
 The hotel is classified as an authentic, world-class spa, of-
fering treatments with indigenous American natural medicine, and 
artistic, recreational and adventure activities, in a setting that gives 
visitors the opportunity to come close to nature. 
 Nestling in an area of exceptional beauty, in the north of 
the Mexican state of Hidalgo, the hotel offers its guests a chance to 
enjoy the lush, semi-tropical surroundings, as well as the numerous 
tourist activities available in the area. 
 The project will also be a huge source of direct and indirect 
employment for the people living in the Hidalgo Huasteca region.
 The Company plans to officially inaugurate Sterra during 
the second quarter of 2009.

STERRA
H O T E L

Hotel pool and spa

Hotel entrance
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 2008 was a year of contrasts in which Minera Autlán man-
aged to capitalize on the opportunities that arose during the first nine 
months of the year and demonstrated its capacity to react when faced 
with sudden change. 
 For the first nine months of the year, the manganese industry 
benefitted from a higher demand by steel manufacturers, resulting in a 
significantly increased production volume and sales. In addition, a lim-
ited global supply elevated the prices of manganese ferroalloys, which 
reached historic highs by mid-year. This situation made it possible for 
Minera Autlán to obtain record financial results, posting figures and 
growth that were unprecedented in the history of the Company. 
 However, during the last quarter of the year, the panorama 
of the world’s economy changed drastically, forcing us to redefine our 
sales strategy and capitalize on the Company’s operational flexibility as 
we faced a far more complex future. The forecast of reduced demand in 
the ferroalloy market led Company management to suspend operations 
at the Gómez Palacio plant in November 2008, in order to optimize pro-
duction and maximize returns. 
 Net sales for the year increased 118% to $5,373.9 million 
pesos at yearend 2008. This figure represents a record in sales for the 
Company, which reflected the positive factors discussed previously, such 
as the historical rise in the prices of our products, whose spot prices 
increased approximately 80% on average during the year, and also a 
greater demand for our ferroalloys during 2008. 

 The cost of sales as a percent of sales dropped 17 percentage 
points, reaching $2,697.1 million pesos for 2008. Operational efficien-
cies and economies of scale helped to reduce costs significantly and 
to achieve gross margins equivalent to half of the amount sold, even 
though the cost of electricity and other raw materials was very high for 
most of the year.  
 Operating income reached $2,268.1 million pesos, reflecting 
a 339% growth over 2007, and the operating margin was 42%. This 
was a result of higher sales during the year and a greater absorption of 
expenses. 
 The generation of operating cash flow expressed as EBITDA 
(Operating Income plus Depreciation and Amortization) reached 
$2,423.3 million pesos, almost four times greater than the figure for 
2007 and representing a 45% margin, which for the second consecutive 
year was a record for Minera Autlán.
 The comprehensive financing cost was affected by the global 
changes in the fourth quarter of the year since, during this period, the 
Mexican peso devalued sharply vis-à-vis the U.S. dollar. This resulted in 
foreign exchange losses on exchange rate hedges because of derivative 
instruments contracted, which in turn resulted in a $1,018.9 million-
peso comprehensive financing cost for the year.

FINANCIAL
R E S U L T S

the generation of operating cash floW expressed as ebitda reached 
$2,423.3 million pesos, almost four times greater than the figure for 
2007 and representing a 45% margin, Which for the second consecutive 
year Was a record for minera autlán.
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 Although market conditions changed drastically at the end 
of the year, Minera Autlán managed to post an annual net income of 
$683.1 million pesos for 2008, 70% higher than the previous year’s net 
income, and a net margin of 13%. The 2008 net income was the highest 
generated in the past few years. 
 During 2008, the Company made capital expenditures of 30 
million dollars. The second refinery was opened in September, thus in-
creasing the Company’s operational flexibility to focus on products with 
greater value added. Preparations continued at the underground mine to 
make it possible to work in the mine’s lower levels with a mining system 
that will be safer, more productive and less expensive than the current 
system. Moreover, exploration work to validate the proven ore reserves 
was intensified and the preparation of the Tajo Naopa open-pit mine 
began. 
 As in previous years, the Company, aware of the importance 
of innovation, allocated resources for research and development in order 
to improve processes and products, as well as the commercial uses for 
the byproducts generated by our operations.

GENERAL BALANCE SHEET
 Cash assets at the end of 2008 were significantly higher than 
those of 2007, mainly as a result of better sales figures. The portfolio 
and inventories also grew in comparison to the previous year, given the 
greater sales and production activity, as well as the increased value of 
our products.
 Minera Autlán’s net debt at yearend 2008 was negative, 
proving that the Company enjoys a sound financial balance, which will 
allow us to meet the financial commitments that might arise in the cur-
rent dismal panorama, but which might also produce interesting op-
portunities for consolidation and growth. 
 The Company’s liabilities reflect commitments taken on to 
address the losses brought about by the Company’s use of derivative 
instruments in its hedging operations. 

MINERA AUTLÁN STOCK
 In 2008, the Company worked hard to improve communi-
cation with its investors, building their trust in us and, as a result, sig-
nificantly increasing the trading volume of our shares, giving us greater 
liquidity and making us more attractive in the market. The Company’s 
shares rose 40% in 2008 closing at 27.79 pesos.

the company’s shares rose 40% in 
2008, closing at 27.79 pesos.
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Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B de C.V.,  April 2008 - March 2009

   THE CHAIRMAN OF 
        THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  B y 

 The Chairman of the Audit Committee of Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. presents this report under the terms, 
and for the purposes of, the provisions of Article 43, Section II of the Mexican Stock Market Act. 
 This Report has been presented to the Company’s Audit Committee, which has validated its content, scope and con-
clusions so that it can be submitted to the Board of Directors for their opinion and validation and, through this Board, to the 
Annual Ordinary General Assembly of the Stockholders of Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. to be held on April 29, 2009, 
in compliance with the stipulations of Article 28, Section IV, Subsection a) of the aforementioned Stock Market Act.
 The Annual Ordinary General Assembly of the Company’s Stockholders held on April 30, 2008, at the proposal of the 
Board of Directors, ratified the undersigned as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Ernesto Ortiz and Jorge Morales as mem-
bers of the same. 
 During the period being reported, the Audit Committee met on the following dates: (i) July 15, 2008; (ii) October 
15, 2008; (iii) November 19, 2008; (iv) November 26, 2008; (v) December 10, 2008; (vi) February 25, 2009; and (vii) March 19, 
2009.
 In keeping with the Committee’s functions and responsibilities, representatives of the firm PricewaterhouseCoopers, 
S.C., the Company’s external auditors, the former CFO of the Company, and the person who currently holds the position of Man-
ager of the Finance Department attended the aforementioned sessions.
 The Company’s Chairman of the Board and the CEO also attended said meetings (except on March 19, 2009), as 
permanent guests. 
 The resolutions adopted by the Audit Committee have been communicated and submitted for consideration to the 
Board of Directors in a timely manner by means of the report presented to the latter at their corresponding sessions. The details 
of such resolutions and agreements can be consulted in the minutes taken at each session and that, with the prior approval of 
the Committee, have been transcribed in the respective minutes book by the Committee Secretary, Juan Pablo del Río. A file has 
been compiled for each session with the reports and other related documents. 
 At each of the aforementioned Committee Sessions, the Company’s Financial Statements, corresponding to the last 
quarter, were analyzed and approved. They were presented by Company Management and the Board of Directors was advised to 
approve them for their subsequent public dissemination. Moreover, at each meeting, the Committee received and analyzed the 
Internal Audit Report for the corresponding period. 
 At the session held on October 15, 2008, the Committee vigorously expressed its surprise and alarm to the Finance 
Department over the decisions to contract financial derivative instruments, related to exchange rate hedging, that had not been 
supported by, or made known to, the Audit Committee and were made under circumstances that did not ensure that Company 
Management fully understood the instruments contracted.  
 Lorenzo Belden, then the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, duly presented to the Committee a report on the impact 
on the Comprehensive Financing Cost (as of October 2008) that resulted from the contracting of derivatives. The aforementioned 
report was presented again at subsequent sessions including the effect of the deferred payments contracted for up to the follow-
ing twenty-four months (as of the end of September 2008) and the recommendation was made to Company Management that 
it should begin the respective negotiations for the eventual contracting with its counterparts in financial derivative instruments 
of mechanisms that would limit the risks from new devaluations of the Mexican peso against the U.S. dollar. 
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 Moreover, the Committee ratified the withdrawal from the Company’s reserves of an amount equivalent to 40 million 
dollars to be used to reduce the positions and lessen the effects of the derivatives that had been contracted. 
 The Committee instructed Company Management to formulate a specific policy related to risks, aside from the com-
pulsory review, evaluation and diagnosis of the policies in effect and of the powers granted to Company officers. 
 PricewaterhouseCoopers, S.C. presented the Company’s External Audit Plan for 2009, which was analyzed and ap-
proved, as were the fees charged by this auditing firm.  
 The Committee instructed Company Management to formulate an Investment Policy, agreeing that, once said Policy 
and the policy related to the Integral Management of Risks had been approved, the supervision of their fulfillment at least every 
quarter would be added to the functions, faculties and tasks of this Committee. 
 The Committee requested a six-monthly review of the fulfillment of the Company’s Self-Regulating Policies by Price-
waterhouseCoopers, S.C., as the Company’s External Auditors. 
 The Committee reviewed and approved the Annual Internal Audit Report as of December 31, 2008.  
 The report by the Company’s CEO corresponding to the activities of the year ended as of December 31, 2008 was 
received and approved, and our favorable opinion of such report was submitted for consideration by the Board of Directors, for 
its subsequent presentation at the Ordinary General Stockholders’ Assembly.  
 The External Auditor submitted a report on the results of the External Audit as of December 31, 2008. 
 All of these considerations demonstrate that the Audit Committee fulfilled during the period being reported the func-
tions stipulated in Article 42, Section II of the Mexican Stock Market Act.
 In the opinion of the Audit Committee, the Company’s internal control and Internal Audit system are adequate, al-
though it is in an ongoing process of improvement. The Committee underscores the need to strengthen the Company’s Self-
Regulatory Policies, particularly regarding the events and circumstances surrounding the transactions with financial derivative 
instruments, which require greater, more stringent supervision.   
 The Audit Committee concludes that the performance of PricewaterhouseCoopers, S.C. as External Auditors of the 
Company and of their partners who were in charge of the respective audit is satisfactory and the communication between 
said Committee and the aforementioned auditors is fluid and constant. Furthermore, the additional or complementary services 
conducted by said External Auditors at the request of the Company were adequate and useful. 
 The recommendations of the Audit Committee in relation to the Accounting or Self-Regulatory Policies and operating 
guidelines, as indicated in the previous paragraphs, have been, or are being, adequately met by Company Management.  
 During the period being reported, the Audit Committee did not receive from any Stockholders, Board Members, rel-
evant directors, employees or in general any third party observations on the accounting, internal controls or any topics related 
to the Internal or External Audit, other than those made by Management during the preparation or review of the respective 
documentation, nor any complaints about events that could be deemed irregular in Management.  
 The Audit Committee has precisely followed up, within its area of responsibility and according to the instructions 
received from the Board of Directors, on the agreements of the Assemblies of the Stockholders and of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period referred to herein.  

San Pedro Garza García, Nuevo León, March 19, 2009.

SINCERELy,

Pedro Reynoso E.
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V.
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Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B de C.V.,  April 2008- March 2009

    CHAIRMAN OF THE CORPORATE 
PRACTICES COMMITTEE 
    TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  B y  T H E 

 The Chairman of the Corporate Practices Committee of Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. presents this report under the 
terms, and for the purposes, of the provisions of Article 43, Section II of the Mexican Stock Market Act. 
 This Report has been presented to the Company’s Corporate Practices Committee, which has validated its content, scope and 
conclusions so that it can be submitted to the Board of Directors for their opinion and validation and, through this Board, to the Annual 
Ordinary General Assembly of the Stockholders of Compañía Minera Autlan, S.A.B. de C.V. to be held on April 29, 2009, in compliance with 
the stipulations of Article 28, Section IV, Subsection a) of the aforementioned Stock Market Act
  The Annual Ordinary and Extraordinary General Assemblies of the Company’s Stockholders held on April 30, 2008, at the pro-
posal of the Board of Directors, ratified the undersigned as Chairman of the Corporate Practices Committee and Pedro Reynoso E. and Jorge 
Morales as members of the same.
 During the reporting period, the Corporate Practices Committee met on the following dates: (i) July 30, 2008; (ii) October 15, 
2008; (iii) November 19, 2008; (iv) December 10, 2008; (vi) February 25, 2009; and (vii) March 19, 2009.
 The Chairman of the Board and the CEO also attended said meetings as permanent guests.  
 The resolutions adopted by the Corporate Practices Committee have been communicated and submitted for consideration to 
the Board of Directors in a timely manner by means of a report presented to the latter at their corresponding sessions. The details of such 
resolutions and agreements can be consulted in the minutes taken at each session and that, with the prior approval of the Committee, have 
been transcribed in the respective minutes book by the Committee Secretary, Juan Pablo del Río. A file has been compiled for each session 
with the reports and other related documents.
 At each of the aforementioned Committee meetings, Management’s report on the Company’s asset and liabilities account bal-
ances with related parties for the corresponding period was presented. The characteristics and circumstances of the most significant transac-
tions were analyzed and the measures that the Committee deemed to be the most appropriate, under the prevailing circumstances, were 
recommended to Management, with a request for the elimination as far as possible of intercompany account balances. 
 The Committee also recurrently learnt from Management’s report about the balance of investments of surpluses and, where 
appropriate, the Company’s deposits in guarantee, in both Mexican pesos and U.S. dollars, analyzing the corresponding investment instru-
ments and institutions.  
 At the July 30, 2008 session, the Committee agreed to approve Management’s proposal to create a cash reserve, to be formed 
initially by means of an allocation of US$20 million, to be ultimately increased in accordance with the possibilities and proposals to be 
presented quarterly by Management to the Committee. The reserve and/or its yields would be used as determined by the Board of Directors, 
at the proposal of the Company’s CEO and CFO. These resources would ultimately be used to reduce positions and lessen the effects of the 
financial derivative instruments that had been contracted, as discussed and resolved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.  
 At the February 25, 2009 session, the Committee reviewed the report on the performance of the CEO and other senior executives 
in the Company, rating them on the basis of aspects such as: leadership, global vision, teamwork, creativity, flexibility, sense of urgency, 
fulfillment of goals and accomplishments. Their payments, income and fringe benefits were also assessed and compared with the relevant 
market averages. 
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 All of these considerations demonstrate that the Corporate Practices Committee fulfilled during the period being reported the 
functions stipulated in Article 42, Section I of the Mexican Stock Market Act. 
 During the period being reported, the Corporate Practices Committee did not receive, and was not aware of any request for, 
dispensations for the use of businesses that correspond to the Company and/or its subsidiaries from related parties. 

 Moreover, the Committee did not receive from the Stockholders, Board Members, relevant directors, employees or in general any 
third party observations on its responsibilities, other than those made by Management during the preparation or review of the respective 
documentation, or complaints about events that could be deemed irregular in the Management team. 

San Pedro Garza García, Nuevo León, March 19, 2009

Ernesto Ortiz
Chairman of the Corporate Practices Committee 
Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V.
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DIRECTORS

• José Antonio Rivero Larrea 
Chairman 

• José H. Madero Marcos 
vice-Chairman 

• Fernando Rivero Larrea 
vice-Chairman 

• José Antonio Rivero González 

• Pedro Reynoso Ennis 

• Jorge Morales Treviño

• Antonio Elosúa González

• Ernesto Martens Rebolledo

• Ernesto Ortíz Lambretón

• Eugenio Garza Herrera 

• Francisco Garza Zambrano

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

• María Guadalupe González de Rivero

AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

• Pedro Reynoso Ennis
Chairman 

• Ernesto Ortíz Lambretón
Member

• Jorge Morales Treviño 
Member

• José Antonio Rivero Larrea
Permanent Guest

• José H. Madero Marcos
Permanent Guest

• Lorenzo Belden Torres
Permanent Guest

• Samuel Meléndez Soto
Permanent Guest

• Juan Pablo del Río Benítez
Secretary

CORPORATE  PRACTICES 
COMMITTEE

• Ernesto Ortíz Lambretón
Chairman 

• Pedro Reynoso Ennis
Member

• Jorge Morales Treviño 
 Member

• José Antonio Rivero Larrea
Permanent Guest

• José H. Madero Marcos
Permanent Guest

• Lorenzo Belden Torres
Permanent Guest

• Samuel Meléndez Soto
Permanent Guest

• Juan Pablo del Río Benítez
Secretary

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CORPORATE COMMITTEES

EXECUTIvE COMMITTEE 

• José Antonio Rivero Larrea
Chairman

• José H. Madero Marcos

• Jorge Morales Treviño

• Ernesto Ortiz Lambretón

• José Antonio Rivero González
• Pedro Rivero González

• Pedro Reynoso de la Garza

• Jorge García Segovia

• Patricio Morales Sada

• Remko Been Van Es

• Ernesto Ortíz de la Garza

• Andrés Garza Herrera

• María Elena Rivero González

• Evaristo Madero Vizcaíno

CORPORATE
G O V E R N A N C E
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To the Stockholders of 
Compañía Minera Autlán, S. A. B. de C. V.

Monterrey, N. L., March 18, 2009

 We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Compañía Minera Autlán, S. A. B. de 
C. V. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income and of changes in 
stockholders’ equity for the years then ended; likewise, we have also audited the consolidated statements of cash flow and of 
changes in financial position for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits.
 We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Mexico.  Those standards re-
quire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of ma-
terial misstatement and that they were prepared in accordance with Mexican Financial Reporting Standards.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes 
assessing the financial reporting standards used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 In our opinion, the aforementioned consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the con-
solidated financial position of Compañía Minera Autlán, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and 
the consolidated results of their operations and the changes in their stockholders’ equity for the years then ended, and their cash 
flows and the changes in their consolidated financial position for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, in 
conformity with Mexican Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Jorge Valdez 

INDEPENDENT 
               AUDITORS

R E P O R T  O F  
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2008

Ps 934,710

497,293
   

6,244
603,703

20,084
142,367

2,204,401

2,552,897

69,133

Ps 4,826,431

2007

Ps 226,079

291,312
65,224
26,285

319,105
44,295

7,538

979,838

2,303,579

63,044

Ps 3,346,461

Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. and Subsidiaries
(Subsidiaries of Grupo Ferrominero, S. A. de C. V.)
At december 31, 2008 and 2007
Thousands of Mexican pesos (See Note 2)

Assets

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and temporary investments
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of Ps56,544 in 2008 and Ps41,544 in 2007
Accounts receivable from related parties (Note 3)
Other accounts receivable
Inventories, net (Note 4)
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash (Note 7 and 8) 
     
Total current assets
     
     

PROPERTy, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Note 5)

OTHER ASSETS AND DEFERRED CHARGES

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

José H. Madero 
Chief Executive Officer

BALANCE SHEET
C O N S O L I D A T E D
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2008

Ps 134,453

146,164
2,346

571,436
94,040

114,022
21,390

1,083,851

297,378
180,167
509,641

46,777

1,033,963

2,117,814

1,111,635
391,914

1,503,549

1,205,068

2,708,617

Ps 4,826,431

2007

Ps  26,113
204,843

12,629

20,798
37,429

301,812

325,986

555,263
41,408

922,657

1,224,469

3,672,080
2,265,635

5,937,715

600,650
(4,416,373)

2,121,992

Ps 3,346,461

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 7)
Notes payable 
Suppliers
Account payable to Grupo Ferrominero, S. A. de C. V., parent company
Short-term liabilities from valuation of derivative instruments (Note 8)
Income tax payable
Employees’ profit sharing payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total current liabilities
     
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (Note 7)
Long-term liabilities from valuation of derivative instruments (Note 8
Deferred income tax (Note 12)
Estimated liability for labor benefits (Note 9)
     
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
     
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITy (Note 10):
Capital stock
Premium on issuance of capital stock

Contributed capital

Retained earnings
Deficit on restatement of capital

Total stockholders’ equity

CONTINGENCIES (Note 13)    
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Gustavo Cárdenas
Chief Financial Officer
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INCOME
C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F 

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Operating expenses

Operating income

Comprehensive financing income (expense):
Financial expense, net
Exchange gain (loss), net
Valuation and realization of  financial derivative transactions (Note 8)
Loss on monetary position

Other (expense) income, net (Note 11)

Income before the following provision

Provision for income tax (Note 12)

Consolidated net income

Earnings per share, in pesos (Note 2.n)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

José H. Madero
Chief Executive Officer 

2008

Ps 5,373,949

(2,697,114)

2,676,835

(408,720)

2,268,115

(67,984)
215,416

(1,166,366)

(1,018,934)
1,249,181

(214,561)

1,034,620

(351,550)

Ps 683,070

Ps 2.51

2007

Ps 2,461,672

(1,639,417)

822,255

(305,953)

516,302

(58,825)
(8,583)
82,751
(2,010)

13,333
529,635

52,755

582,390

(179,455)

Ps 402,935

Ps 1.43

Gustavo Cárdenas
Chief Financial Officer

Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. and Subsidiaries
For the years 2008 and 2007
Thousands of Mexican pesos (See Note 2)
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            CHANGES IN 
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITy

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F 

Balances 
at December 31, 2006

Changes in 2007:
Loss from holding 
nonmonetary assets
Net income for the year

Comprehensive income

Dividends declared
Decrease in capital stock, net
Acquisition of subsidiary
Repurchase of own shares, net
Balances at December 31, 2007

Changes in 2008:
Reclassification of income (loss) 
from holding accumulated realized 
nonmonetary assets (Note 10)  

Dividends declared
Repurchase of own shares, net
Net income and comprehensive 
income for the year

Balances at December 31, 2008 
(Note 10)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
these financial statements.

José H. Madero 
Chief Executive Officer

Capital 
stock

Ps 3,768,903

(111,132)

14,309
3,672,080

(2,542,652)

(17,793)

Ps 1,111,635

Premium on 
issuance of 

capital stock

Ps 2,265,635

2,265,635

(1,873,721)

Ps 391,914

Total

Ps 6,034,538

(111,132)

14,309
5,937,715

(4,416,373)

(17,793)

Ps 1,503,549

Retained 
earnings

Ps 251,900

402,935

402,935

(18,075)

(36,315)
205

600,650

(78,652)

683,070

Ps 1,205,068

Deficit on 
restatement 

of capital

(Ps 4,410,633)

(5,740)

(5,740)

 (4,416,373)

4,416,373

Total

(Ps 4,158,733)

(5,740)
402,935

397,195

(18,075)

(36,315)
205

(3,815,723)

4,416,373

(78,652)

683,070

Ps 1,205,068

Total 
stockholders’ 

equity

Ps 1,875,805

(5,740)
402,935

397,195

(18,075)
(111,132)

(36,315)
14,514

2,121,992

(78,652)
(17,793)

683,070

Ps 2,708,617

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL EARNED SURPLUS

Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. and Subsidiaries
For the years 2008 and 2007
Thousands of Mexican pesos (See Note 2)

Gustavo Cárdenas
 Chief Financial Officer
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Operations
Income before income tax
Items related to investment activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Interest payable
Derivative financial instruments
Items related to financing activities:
Interest payable
Exchange gain (loss)
Employees’ profit sharing
Others, net

Total

Increase in clients
Increase in inventories
Decrease of suppliers
Income tax paid
Other
Net cash flows of operating activities 

Investment
Interest earned
Acquisition of property, machinery and equipment and other assets
Derivative financial instruments
Other assets
Net cash flows of investment activities 
Cash in excess applicable to financing activities

Financing
Payment of bank loans
Increase in bank financing
Dividends paid 
Interest paid 
Other

Net cash flows of financing activities 
Net increase in cash and temporary investments
Cash and temporary investments and restricted cash at beginning of year
Cash and temporary investments and restricted cash at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

José H. Madero 
Chief Executive Officer

2008

Ps 1,034,620

155,183
 (7,402)

1,166,366

75,386
 (215,416)

114,022
71,399

2,394,158
 

(119,116)
 (284,598)

 (58,679)
 (257,510)

97,358
1,771,613

7,402
 (400,202)
 (414,763)

54,941
 (752,622)
1,018,991

 

(30,283)
23,562

 (78,652)
 (73,079)
 (17,079)

 
(175,531)

843,460
233,617

Ps 1,077,077

CASH FLOW
C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F 

Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. and Subsidiaries
For the year 2008
Thousands of Mexican pesos (See Note 2)

Gustavo Cárdenas 
Chief Financial Officer
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Operations
Consolidated net incom

Items not affecting resources:
Depreciation and amortization
Reversal in value of impairment of long-lived assets
Deferred income tax
Estimated labor benefits

Changes in working capital other than financing:
Trade accounts receivable and other accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Suppliers
Taxes and other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net resources provided by operations

Financing
Debt and notes payable
Changes in restricted cash
Decrease in capital stock, net
Repurchase of own shares
Dividends declared
Related parties, net

Resources provided by financing activities

Investment
Property, plant and equipment, net
Related parties
Acquisition of subsidiary
Resources used in investment activities
Increase in cash and temporary investments

Cash and temporary investments at beginning of year
Cash and temporary investments at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

 

José H. Madero 
Chief Executive Officer

2008

Ps 402,935

113,450
 (143,055)

155,601
4,793

533,724

 (61,310)
 (97,654)
 (31,579)

44,767
 (52,123)
335,825

183,099
13,256

 (111,132)
14,514

 (18,075)
30,856

112,518

(286,306)
81,146

 (36,315)
 (241,475)

206,868

19,211
Ps 226,079

CHANGES IN 
         FINANCIAL POSITION

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F 

Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. and Subsidiaries
For the year 2007 
Thousands of Mexican pesos of December 31, 2007 purchasing power

Gustavo Cárdenas
 Chief Financial Officer
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Compañía Minera Autlán, S.A.B. de C.V. and Subsidiaries (Subsidiaries of Grupo Ferrominero, S. A. de C. V.)
At december 31, 2008 and 2007
Thousands of Mexican pesos (see Note 2) (except where otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL 
           STATEMENTS

N O T E S  T O  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  

1. ENTITY AND OPERATIONS
Compañía Minera Autlán, S. A. B. de C. V. (Autlán), was incorporated in 1953.  It is a Mexican company whose main activity is the extraction 
of manganese ore, and the production and sale of ferroalloys, used mainly in the production of steel.  The term “the Company”, as used in 
this report, refers to Autlán together with its consolidated subsidiaries.

Autlán carries out its activities through operating units located in Tamós in the State of Veracruz, Molango and Nonoalco in the State of 
Hidalgo, Teziutlán in the State of Puebla and Gómez Palacio, in the State of Durango.  It also has various service subsidiaries mentioned in 
Note 2.  Autlán’s shares are listed in the Mexican Stock Exchange.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
On March 17, 2009, the Company’s officers signed the basic financial statements and notes thereto and authorized the issuance of the ac-
companying consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 have been prepared in accordance 
with Mexican Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).

On January 1, 2008, FRS B-10 “Effects of inflation” became effective.  It sets forth the rules for the recognition of the effects of inflation on the 
financial information based on the country’s inflationary environment.  In accordance with this FRS, the effects of inflation on the financial 
information will not be recognized if inflation does not exceed 26% in the three most recent years (except for subsidiaries in countries hav-
ing inflation exceeding 26%).  Since the accumulated inflation for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, did not exceed the 
26% stipulated, the financial statements at December 31, 2008 have been prepared on the modified historical cost basis (that is, the effects 
of the transactions carried out until December 31, 2007 are stated in constant pesos of purchasing power as of that date, and the effects of 
transactions carried out after that date are stated in nominal pesos).  The financial statements for the year ended 

December 31, 2007, presented for comparative purposes, are stated in constant pesos of December 31, 2007 purchasing power, based on 
factors derived from the National Consumer Price Index (NCPI) published by the Banco de México for domestic companies, and from the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) of the country of origin of the subsidiaries operating outside Mexico.

 The accumulated inflation of the most recent three years in the countries in which Autlan and its subsidiaries operate does not exceed the 
26% mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

On January 1, 2008, FRS B-2 “Statement of cash flows” became effective; therefore, management included as part of the basic financial 
statements the statement of cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2008.  This statement reports the cash inflows and cash outflows 
of the business, representing the resources provided or used during the year, determined by the indirect method; the statement of changes 
in financial position for the year ended December 31, 2007, is presented separately and in accordance with Statement B-12, which was in 
effect at that date.

On January 1, 2007, Autlán and its subsidiaries adopted the standards contained in FRS B-3, which basically stipulates a new structure for 
the statement of income, eliminating the presentation of extraordinary and special items and classifying income and expense as ordinary 
or non-ordinary, and modifies the general presentation and disclosure criteria for this statement. As a result of applying this new standard, 
management adopted the criterion of presenting the statement of income based on function, since grouping costs and expenses on this 
basis allows the various levels of income to be presented.  In this connection, for the convenience of the reader, the operating income is 
presented separately since this caption represents a factor for the analysis of the financial information that Autlán and its subsidiaries have 
regularly presented.

Following is a summary of the most significant accounting policies followed by Autlan and its subsidiaries, which have been applied on a 
consistent basis in the preparation of their financial information for the years presented, unless otherwise indicated:
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a. Bases for presentation and disclosure
The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries are conformed to Mexican financial reporting standards. Until December 31, 2007, the 
financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries classified as foreign entities included in the consolidation were restated by using the CPI of 
the country of origin, and were subsequently translated by applying the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the period.  From January 
1, 2008 onwards the financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries classified as foreign entities located in a non-inflationary economy are 
converted as follows: (a) assets and liabilities: year-end exchange rate; (b) stockholders’ equity: historical exchange rate; (c) revenues, costs 
and expenses: historical exchange rate (or average in the event of no significant change); and (d) translation adjustment: included on the 
comprehensive income or loss in stockholders’ equity.  The effect of the changes in exchange rates is included directly in stockholders’ equity 
under the caption “Cumulative translation adjustment”.

The preparation of the financial information in accordance with FRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts at the date of the financial statements.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  The main captions subject 
to these estimates include the following: net fixed assets, allowances for doubtful accounts, inventory reserve, deferred income tax asset, 
valuation of financial instruments and labor obligations (assets and liabilities).

In accordance with the foregoing, in order to recognize the effects of inflation on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2007, the most important indexes used (NCPI) were:125.564 and 121.015 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively (second half of 
June 2002 = 100).

b. Bases for consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise those of Autlán and all its subsidiaries.  Intercompany transactions and balances between 
Autlán and its subsidiaries have been eliminated in consolidation.

The principal subsidiary companies of Autlán are:

Service companies and other:
Arrendadora Autlán, S. A. de C. V.
Compañía Recuperadora de Escorias, S. A. de C. V.
Inmobiliaria y Operadora Turística Sterra, S. A. de C. V.
Inmobiliaria Molango, S. A.
Industrial Minera Teziutlán Acatlán, S. A.
La Herradura de México, S. A. de C. V. 
Metcore de México, S. A. de C. V. 
GFM Cerámica, S. A. de C. V.
Compañía Ecológica de la Sierra, S. A. de C. V. 
Minas de Santa Marta, S. A. 
GFM Resources, Ltd. (a)
Trading companies:
Autlán Metal Services, S. A. de C. V. 
Comercial Autlán, S. A. de C. V.
GFM Trading de México, S. A. de C. V.
GFM Trading, Inc.

(a) Canadian company acquired in June 2007.

c. Temporary investments
These investments include investments in debt and capital securities, and are classified in the following categories in accordance with their 
maturity date and management’s intention at the date of acquisition: investments to be held to maturity, negotiable financial instruments 
and financial instruments available for sale.  They are initially stated at acquisition cost and are subsequently stated as described below:

i. Debt securities to be held to maturity are stated at acquisition cost reduced by amortization of premiums or increased by amortization 
of discounts, as applicable, based on the unrecovered balance while the investments are in effect.  Decrease in value is recognized when 
appropriate.

ii.Negotiable financial instruments and those available for sale are stated at fair value, which is similar to the market value.  The fair value 
is the amount at which financial assets can be exchanged or financial liabilities can be liquidated between interested and willing parties 

2008

99
98
99
99
99
99
98
98
99
99
76

99
99
99
99

% ownership at December 31
2007

99
98
99
99
99
99
98
98
99
99
76

99
99
99
99



54

AN
NU

AL
 RE

PO
RT

 20
08

 M
IN

ER
A 

AU
TL

ÁN

on an arm’s-length basis.  The changes in the fair value of negotiable financial instruments are charged or credited directly to income.  The 
changes in the fair value of financial instruments available for sale are included as part of comprehensive income under stockholders’ equity 
until the instruments are sold or are reclassified, at which time the amounts included in comprehensive income are transferred to income 
for the year.

d. Inventories and cost of sales
In 2008 inventories are stated at historical cost determined by the average cost method.  The amounts shown for inventories do not exceed 
market value. Likewise, the cost of sales is determined based on the historical purchase prices and production costs of the inventories 
produced and sold during 2008, plus the restated value (replacement cost) of final 2007 inventories sold during the year. Consequently, at 
December 31, 2008, the cost of sales was stated at modified historical cost, as described.

At December 31, 2007, inventories and related cost of sales were originally recorded at average cost and were subsequently restated at 
estimated replacement cost, basically at the latest purchase prices and production costs of the year. The amounts shown for inventories do 
not exceed market value.

The allowance for obsolete and/or slow-moving inventories is considered sufficient to absorb any losses of this type; it is determined in 
accordance with studies carried out by the Company’s management.

e. Property, plant, equipment and depreciation
From January 1, 2008 onwards new acquisitions of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost; until December 31, 2007, 
property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation were stated at cost restated by applying factors derived from the NCPI 
to the historical cost, except for machinery and equipment of foreign origin, which were stated at cost restated by applying factors derived 
from the CPI of the country of origin to the corresponding foreign currency amounts and translating those amounts to pesos at the exchange 
rate prevailing at the end of 2007.  Consequently, at December 31, 2008, property, plant and equipment are stated at modified historical 
cost.

The cost of interest, the exchange gain or loss, the gain or loss on monetary position and other costs relating to financing of fixed assets 
whose acquisition requires a substantial period of time are capitalized as forming part of the related cost of acquisition or investment. Con-
sequently, the cost of acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment (qualifying assets), includes the comprehensive financing income 
(expense) incurred to finance their construction.

Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as determined by the companies.

Property, plant and equipment are subject to recognition of impairment, as well as the reversal of such impairment, when appropriate.

f. Deferred charges
From January 1, 2008 onwards, this item is expressed at its modified historical cost (see third paragraph of this Note), less the corresponding 
accumulated amortization.  Until December 31, 2007, this item was expressed at restated cost determined by applying factors derived from 
the NCPI less the corresponding accumulated amortization to the historical cost.  This item primarily includes expenses from the placement 
of debt, exploration and research expenses and mining concessions, which are amortized once the mineral extraction process begins.

g. Transactions in foreign currency and exchange differences
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, mainly U.S. dollars (US$), are stated in Mexican currency at the rates of exchange in ef-
fect at the balance-sheet date.  Exchange differences arising from changes in exchange rates between the transaction and settlement dates 
or the balance-sheet date are recorded in comprehensive financing income (expense).

 h. Estimated liability for labor benefits
The employee retirement plans (pensions and seniority premiums), both formal and informal, as well as the benefits payable at termination 
of employment for causes other than from restructuring, are recognized as a cost of the years in which the services are rendered in accor-
dance with actuarial studies made by independent actuaries.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from retirement benefits in excess of the greater between 10% of the value of defined benefit obligation 
and 10% of the value of plan assets are amortized over the expected average remaining service lives of the employees expected to receive 
the benefits.

On January 1, 2008 the standards contained in FRS D-3 “Employee benefits” became effective.  These standards require, among other things, 
a reduction in the amortization period of the items relating to prior service cost, the incorporation of the effects of salary growth in the 
calculation of the defined benefit obligation, as well as the elimination of the additional liability and corresponding intangible asset, and if 
applicable, of the amount recorded in stockholders’ equity. 
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From January 1, 2008 onwards the transition liability is amortized over the lesser of the period pending to be amortized or five years.  Until 
December 31, 2007, the actuarial gains and losses and transition liability captions subject to amortization were amortized on the basis of 
the average estimated service lives of the employees.

i. Derivative financial instruments
Autlán utilizes derivative financial instruments for purposes of reducing its risk relative to adverse fluctuations in prices of inputs and in 
exchange rates.

All derivative financial instruments entered into and identified and classified as held for trading or as hedge instruments are included in 
the balance sheet as assets and/or liabilities at fair value.  The fair value is determined based on the prices of recognized markets; when no 
quoted market prices are available, it is determined based on valuation techniques accepted in the financial sector.

The changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognized in the comprehensive financing income (expense), except 
when entered into to hedge against risk and comply with all related requirements.  Their designation as a hedge is documented at the 
inception of the transaction, specifying the related objective, initial position, risks to be hedged, type of hedge relationship, characteristics, 
accounting recognition and how their effectiveness will be assessed.  Fair value hedges are stated at fair value and changes in valuation 
are recorded in income under the same caption as the hedged item.  In the case of cash flow hedges, the effective portion is temporarily 
included in comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity and is reclassified to income when the hedged item affects income.  Any ineffec-
tive portion is recognized immediately in income.

Financial risk factors
The Company is exposed, due to the normal course of its business, to financial risks, which in accordance with its financial strategy, it regu-
larly administers through the Derivative Financial Instruments (DFI); these financial risks are usually related to exchange rate derivatives. 

The Company performs transactions with DFI with the purposes of mitigating the financial risks to which it is exposed.  Positions are held 
with these instruments to hedge mainly the exchange rate risk since practically all of the Company’s revenues are denominated in US dollars, 
having most of its costs and expenses both fixed and variable stated in Mexican pesos.  Consequently, with the objective of minimizing the 
risk of a probable depreciation of the US dollar vs. Mexican pesos, the Company seeks hedging through the DFI.  The most commonly used 
type of instruments by the company are: Exchange Rate Forward, Exchange Rate Options, Target Profit Forward with Exchange Currency 
Options, and Target Profit Forwards.

Through the use of DFI, the Company seeks to hedge its financial risks as determined in the paragraph above; however, it is in turn exposed 
to a credit risk known as “default”.  This credit risk is originated when the counterparty of the Company does not comply with obligations 
determined within the agreement established for the operation of Derivative Instruments.  Therefore, the Company minimizes the credit 
risk in its positions with DFI, performing these transactions with financial brokers with an excellent moral and credit quality; most of these 
transactions are carried out in private or over the counter markets and with international financial institutions, although it also works with 
national and international institutions.

Management seeks to delimit and limit the risk, through the review of the effective self-regulatory policies, among other actions, while 
the Audit Committee assumes the activities of the comprehensive risk management committee.  The use and management of the DFI is the 
responsibility of the Finance Management, which reports the activities to the Executive Committee on a monthly basis and on a quarterly 
basis to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Additionally to the abovementioned measures, the Company destined a cash fund of US$40 million US dollars to minimize the risk and 
exposure of DFI transactions; such fund represents 82% of the risk calculated to date, and may be increased on a monthly basis in accordance 
with the generation of flow in excess of the company up to 100% of the market value (market to market) of the DFI positions.

j. Repurchase of own shares
The purchase of own shares is made through a charge to stockholders’ equity at its purchase price, part of it to the capital stock at modified 
historical value and the remaining part to retained earnings.  These amounts are expressed at historical cost.

k. Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes revenues when merchandise is delivered and billed to customers.  The revenues and the accounts receivable are 
recorded net of allowances for returns and doubtful accounts, respectively.
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l. Comprehensive financing income (expense)
This item is determined by grouping in the statement of income all interest and other financial income and expense, exchange gains and 
losses, and the gain or loss on monetary position.

The gain or loss on monetary position represents the effect of inflation, as measured by the NCPI, on the Company’s monthly net monetary 
assets or liabilities during the year.

Until December 31, 2007, it was necessary to calculate the gain or loss on monetary position, which represented the effect of inflation, as 
measured by the NCPI, on the Company’s monthly net monetary assets and liabilities during the year expressed in pesos of the most recent 
year reported on.  In accordance with the standards of FRS B-10 its recognition is not required from January 1, 2008 onwards (see third 
paragraph of this Note).

m. Income tax, asset tax and corporate flat rate
Autlan and its subsidiaries file consolidated income tax returns in accordance with the applicable regulations with Grupo Ferrominero, S. A. 
de C. V. (parent company).  The income tax included in the consolidated statement of income, represents the income tax currently payable 
for the year as well as the effect of the deferred income tax, determined in each subsidiary by the comprehensive asset and liability method, 
applying the income tax rate in effect to total temporary differences resulting from comparing the book and tax amounts of all assets and 
liabilities, and if applicable, considering tax loss carryforwards expected to be recoverable.  The effect of the change in current income tax 
rates is recognized in income of the year in which the rate change is enacted.

 On October 1, 2007, the Flat Tax Law was published, and was effective from January 1, 2008 onwards.  This law is applicable to individuals 
and corporations having a permanent establishment in Mexico.  The flat tax for the period is calculated by applying to income determined 
on a cash flow basis a 16.5% rate in 2008, a 17% in 2009 and a 17.5% in 2010 and subsequent periods.  This tax is applicable only in the 
event the flat tax exceeds the income tax for the same period.  Based on an interpretation covering accounting for the flat tax, published 
by the Mexican Financial Reporting Standards Board on December 21, 2007, and on the financial and tax projections that were prepared 
indicating that Autlan and its subsidiaries in Mexico will basically pay income tax rather than flat tax in the future, no deferred flat tax was 
recorded at December 31, 2008 and 2007.

In accordance with the current law, from January 1, 2008 onwards the Asset Tax Law is no longer in effect.  However, the new law sets forth 
the methodology applicable to the recovery of asset tax paid in prior years, which was available for recovery in the following ten years, to 
the extent income tax exceeded asset tax in those years.

n. Earnings per share
Earnings per share are computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.  There are 
no effects arising from potentially dilutive shares.

o. Comprehensive income
The transactions recorded in the various captions relating to earned surplus for the year, other than those carried out with the stockholders, 
are included in the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity under the caption “comprehensive income (loss)”.

p. Concentration of risks
The main financial instruments maintained by the Company under a credit risk concentration correspond to cash in banks and temporary 
investments, as well as trade accounts receivable.  Cash and temporary investments are maintained in recognized financial institutions.  The 
relative investments are in fixed interest and money market securities.  The risk concentration with respect to accounts receivable is impor-
tant since at December 31, 2008, 66.9% of the total accounts receivable portfolio was concentrated in five customers (83.6% in 2007).  In 
addition, the Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts based on the estimated recoverability of the accounts receivable.

3. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

At December 31, 2007 accounts receivable from related parties comprised the following:

Compañía de Energía Mexicana, S. A. de C. V. (1)
Lynx Servicios Aéreos, S. A. de C. V. (1)
Grupo Inmobiliaria Serfimex, S. A. de C. V. (1)
Metal Trading, S. A. de C. V.
Other

(1) These balances arise from current account lines of credit

Ps 35,017
22,573

1,814
76

5,744
Ps 65,224
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The statement of income includes the following transactions with related parties:

Air transportation service
Interest expense, net
Technical services paid 

The compensations and benefits received by the officers of the Company amounted to Ps14,055 (Ps 17,188 in 2007), consisting of the basic 
salary and benefits granted by law; in addition to a variable compensation program, which is based mainly on Autlán’s results.  There are no 
agreements or programs that facilitate the acquisition of Autlán’s shares by its officers or employees.

Autlán and its subsidiaries affirm that there were no significant transactions with related parties or conflicts of interest which should be 
disclosed.

4. INVENTORIES
Inventories comprised the following:

Finished goods
Minerals and raw materials
Spare parts inventory 
Merchandise in transit 

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories
Total

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
This caption comprised the following:

Land
Buildings and constructions
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and equipment
Transportation equipment
Data-processing equipment
Construction in progress
Other assets

Less - Accumulated depreciation

Net restated value

Depreciation charged to income represented average annual rates of approximately 3% for buildings and constructions and 4% for machin-
ery, furniture and equipment in both years.

Given the favorable circumstances observed in 2007 related to the steel industry and the behavior of the ferroalloy prices, and applying the 
guidelines of Statement C-15, “Impairment of Long-lived Assets and their Disposal”, the company partially reverted the impairment in the 
value of fixed assets in that year, recording it in 2001.  The amount of the reversal for the year ended December 31, 2007 was of $143,055 
($103,000 net of the effect of income tax), which is shown under item “other income” within the statement of income for such year.  At 
December 31, 2008 the analysis of impairment made, determined no adjustment to the value of assets.

6. FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the exchange rates were 13.54 and 10.86 nominal pesos to the U.S. dollar, respectively.  At March 18, 2009, 
date of issuance of these audited financial statements, the exchange rate was 14.05 nominal pesos to the dollar.

Amounts shown below are expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars (US$), since this is the currency in which most of the companies’ transac-
tions are carried out.

 

2008
(Ps 3,996)

(42,578)
(42,538)

2007
(Ps 3,887)

(23,046)
(18,175)

2007
Ps 182,639

60,242
55,216
21,468

319,565
(460)

Ps 319,105

2008
Ps 277,993

249,054
77,105

604,152
(449)

Ps 603,703

2007
Ps 68,575
1,240,913
4,177,621

40,724
46,052
60,134

104,955
116,547

5,786,946
(3,551,942)

2,235,004
Ps 2,303,579

2008
Ps 66,916
1,211,801
4,396,949 

41,394
51,713
56,887

176,711
136,204

6,071,659
(3,585,678)

2,485,981
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At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the companies had the following currency assets and liabilities:

Monetary assets
Monetary liabilities
Foreign currency monetary position
Nonmonetary assets

The nonmonetary assets (inventories, machinery and equipment) mentioned above are those manufactured outside Mexico or whose 
replacement costs are determined in foreign currency and are stated at their net restated cost.

Following is a summary of the foreign currency transactions carried out:

Merchandise and services:
Exports
Imports

7. LONG-TERM DEBT
At December 31, 2008, the long-term debt of Autlan and its subsidiaries comprised the following:

Structured, secured loan (a)
Other loans, unsecured 

Current maturities
Long-term debt

(a) It corresponds to a secured loan through the issuance of unsubordinated secured Notes, in the amount of US$30 million; this loan has a 
two-year grace period for the payment of capital and a fixed interest rate of 9.25%.  Guarantees include future revenues from certain exports, 
as well as a surety on the inventory of the company, until the hedging of each one of the outstanding balances of the principal sum of the 
credit.

At December 31, 2008, long-term debt maturities were as follows:

2010
2011
2012

 The current bank loan agreements contain the usual covenants covering the maintenance of certain financial ratios and submission of 
financial information.  In the event noncompliance with such ratios is not cured in a time period satisfactory to the creditors, the latter may 
require immediate payment of the entire indebtedness.  At December 31, 2008, Autlán and its subsidiaries had satisfactorily complied with 
such covenants and restrictions.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, there are cash deposits (restricted cash) securing the future maturities of capital and interest of the bank 
loan maintained by the company at those dates.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007 these deposits amounted to US$694 thousand US dollars 
in both years (equal to Ps9,392 and Ps7,538, respectively), which are included as part of the item “Restricted cash” within current assets.

2008
US$ 101,155

(84,015)
US$ 17,140

US$ 120,777

2007
US$ 41,467

(40,470)
US$ 997

US$ 110,158

2008

US$ 284,827
(115,025)

2007

US$ 46,540
(39,591)

Ps 406,149
25,682

431,831
134,453

Ps 297,378

Ps 135,383
135,383

26,612
Ps 297,378
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8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Exchange rate derivatives
At December 31, 2008, the position of exchange rate derivatives held for trading purposes was summarized as follows:

Type of derivative, 
value or contract

Foreign currency forward
TARN
TARN
TARN
Purchase of Call (i)
Purchase of Put
Options  
Foreign currency forwards 

(i) As part of the objective of reducing the risk exposure, management agreed with its counterparty to the payment of a premium for 
US$22.23 million, which shall be settled through monthly payments from October 2008 to March 2010.  At December 31, 2008 the balance 
of such premium amounts to US$18.5 million.

 b) Energy
At December 31, 2008, the position of exchange rate derivatives of natural gas was summarized as follows:

Type of derivative,
value or contract

Cargill 

The notional amounts related to financial derivative instruments reflect the reference volume contracted.

At December 31, 2008, the net fair value position of the aforementioned financial derivative instruments amounted to Ps751,603; it is 
included in the consolidated balance sheet as follows:

Current liabilities 
Long-term liabilities
Net position (fair value)

During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the company recorded a charge (credit) to income of Ps1,166,366 and (Ps82,751), 
for the valuation and settlement of the agreements effective during those years.

Collaterals required for the above-mentioned financial derivative instruments amounted to Ps132,975; they are recorded in the caption 
“Restricted cash” under current assets, and represent the settlement guarantee for each instrument. They comprise temporary investments 
and cash in broker accounts.

At March 18, 2009 date of issuance of these audited financial statements, the valuation made by management of the aforementioned 
agreements amounts to Ps864,950 and required recording a charge to income of 2009 in the amount of Ps113,347; as a consequence of a 
crawling peg system in 2009, which at March 18 was reflected in an exchange rate of 14.05 nominal pesos to the US dollar.

9. ESTIMATED LIABILITY FOR LABOR BENEFITS
The company has established a retirement plan for its personnel to which they do not contribute.  The benefits under such plan are based pri-
marily on the years of service rendered by the personnel, their present age and remuneration at the retirement date; likewise, remunerations 
at termination of the labor relationship are recorded within the labor obligations of the company.  The obligations and costs corresponding 
to such plan, as well as those corresponding to seniority premiums, are recorded based on actuarial studies prepared by independent experts 
through trust funds and book reserves.

Notional
amount

Underlying asset
Unit                           Reference

Fair
value

Collateral / 
guarantee

US$ 120,000
US$     1,000
US$     2,000
US$     1,500
US$     6,750
US$   42,000
US$     2,000
US$     7,200

Peso / Dollars
Peso / Dollars
Peso / Dollars
Peso / Dollars
Peso / Dollars
Peso / Dollars
Peso / Dollars
Peso / Dollars

13.83
10.95
11.02
11.05
13.83
10.30
11.32
14.13

(Ps 403,769)
(322,948)
(677,957)
(504,458)
1,534,486

24,822
(313,291)

(83,876)
(Ps 746,991)

(Ps 403,769)
(322,948)
(677,957)
(504,458)
1,534,486

24,822
(313,291)

(83,876)
(Ps 746,991)

Notional
amount

150,000 BTU’s

            Underlying asset
     Unit                           Reference

Dólar / BTU                          8.20

Fair
value

(Ps  4,612)

(Ps 571,436)
(180,167)

(Ps 751,603)
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Following is a summary of the principal financial data relative to these obligations:

Accumulated benefit obligations
Accumulated net liability
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Past services (transition liability)
Actuarial gains and losses
Estimated liability for labor benefits
Net cost for the year

Prior service cost (transition liability), plan amendment costs and actuarial gains and losses are amortized through charges to income by the 
straight-line method over the average remaining service life of the employees expected to receive the benefits, as follows:

Amortization period:
Transition liability
Unamortized actuarial gains and losses
Weighted discount rate (in nominal terms in 2008 and real terms in 2007)
Estimated long-term return of plan
assets (in nominal terms in 2008 and real terms in 2007)

10. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
From January 1, 2008 onwards the capital stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings are stated in modified histori-
cal Mexican pesos (see Note 2).  Until December 31, 2007 capital stock, legal reserve, contributions for future increase in capital and retained 
earnings were stated at restated cost determined by applying factors derived from the NCPI.

At December 31, 2008 the fixed minimum capital stock without right of withdrawal, fully subscribed and paid-in, amounted to Ps72,268, 
and was represented by 106,656,929 Series “B”, common nominative shares, without par value.

 At December 31, 2008, Autlán had 524,500 shares held in treasury; each such share had a market value of 27.79 pesos at such date (19.65 
pesos at the date of issuance of these financial statements).

At December 31, 2008 the retained earnings included Ps20,147 appropriated to the legal reserve.

Dividends paid from retained earnings which have not previously been taxed are subject to an income tax payable by the Company, which 
may be credited against the normal income tax payable by the Company in the year in which the dividends are paid and in the two follow-
ing years.

In the event of capital stock reductions, any excess of stockholders’ equity over capital contributions, the latter inflation-indexed in accor-
dance with the provisions of the Mexican Income Tax Law, is accorded the same tax treatment as dividends.

Until December 31, 2007 the deficit on restatement of capital comprised the accumulated loss on initial monetary position and the loss from 
holding nonmonetary assets stated in pesos as of the end of the period.  In accordance with the new guidelines of FRS B-10 “Inflation ef-
fects”, this caption was fully reclassified to restatement of additional paid-in capital and capital stock, as shown in the statement of changes 
in stockholders’ equity.

11. OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME), NET
Management follows the practice of recording in this item, expenditures that are not directly identified with its main industry and are 
mainly integrated by employees’ profit sharing (PTU), surcharges, technical services, nonrecurring expenses and other reserves.  Likewise, in 
accordance with Note 5, this item includes in 2007 the reversal of impairment in long-lived assets.

2007
 Ps 64,170
Ps 35,267

$ 64,293
(28,903)

(1,960)
7,978

Ps 41,408
Ps 4,759

2008
Ps 27,493
Ps 46,777

Ps 61,753
(29,070)

(980)
15,074

Ps 46,777
Ps 5,532

2007
 

5 años
10 años

4.0%

5.3%

2008

4 años
10 años

4.0%

5.0%
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12. INCOME TAX
The net (charge) credit to consolidated income for income tax was as follows:

Currently payable
Deferred
Total

 The reconciliation between the statutory and effective income tax rates was as follows:

Income before income tax
Income tax at statutory rate (28%)
Add (deduct) effect of income tax on:
Inflation accounting and tax effects
Non-deductible expenses
Other permanent differences, net
Total income tax provision charged to income
Effective income tax rate

At December 31 the principal temporary differences requiring recognition of deferred income tax were as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventories 
Property, plant and equipment, net
Other assets
Valuation of derivative financial instruments 
Liability provisions
Employees’ profit sharing payable
Estimated labor benefits
Tax loss carryforwards

Income tax at statutory rate
Deferred income tax
Asset tax recoverable
Deferred income tax liability

Deferred income tax payable recorded at December 31 was (charged) credited to the following accounts:

Balance from prior year 
Income (expense) for the year
Deficit on restatement of capital
Total

Asset tax is payable at the rate of 1.8% on the net amount of certain assets and liabilities but only when the amount of asset tax exceeds 
the current income tax due.  Asset tax paid may be recovered in the following ten years to the extent income tax exceeds asset tax in those 
years.

13. CONTINGENCIES
The Company has contingent obligations in connection with the following:

a. At December 31, 2008, the Company has a balance receivable from Altos Hornos de México, S. A. B. de C. V. (AHMSA), which amounted 
to US$5,740 thousand, at the date when the company declared its suspension of payments (March 31, 2001).  At the date of issuance of the 
financial statements, this situation is yet to be resolved; however, Management estimates that such balance is recoverable in the future due 
to the requirement of ferroalloys as strategies within the productive process of AHMSA.  It is important to mention that currently AHMSA’s 
sales, subsequent to the date it was declared in suspension of payments have been recovered in a 30 day average term.
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b. The company has entered into a revolving credit line agreement with Banco de Comercio Exterior,  S. N. C. (Bancomext) for up to an 
amount of US$15 million, with maturity in July 2010, under which Autlán transfers the rights of invoices of local clients.  At December 31, 
2008, the company had placed Ps126,965 (US$9.3 million) with resource.  The amount of invoices transferred to Bancomext is shown net of 
the item of trade accounts receivable in the balance sheet.

c. The company does not agree with the income tax settlements corresponding to fiscal years 2003 and 2006, originated by the lack of 
acceptance of several deductions and application of fines from apparent irregularities in the presentation of provisional payments.  Man-
agement estimates that these issues will be favorably resolved for the company; consequently, no provision has been recorded to cover 
surcharges, restatements and sanctions that could have to be paid to this respect.

14. NEW FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In 2008 the Mexican Financial Reporting Standards Board issued the following FRS effective January 1, 2009; the Company’s management 
considers that these FRS will have no significant effect on the financial information presented:

FRS B-7 “Business acquisitions” - It stipulates general valuation and disclosure standards for the initial recognition at the date of acquisition of 
the net assets acquired in a business acquisition as well as for the minority interest and other items that might result from it, such as goodwill 
and the gain on acquisition.  This standard replaces Statement B-7 “Business acquisitions”, in force until December 31, 2008. 

FRS B-8 “Combined and consolidated financial statements” - It sets forth the general standards for the preparation and presentation of com-
bined and consolidated financial statements and notes thereon.  This FRS supersedes Statement B-8 “Combined and consolidated financial 
statements and valuation of permanent investments in shares”, in force until December 31, 2008.

 FRS C-7 “Investments in associated companies and other permanent investments” - It sets forth the standards for the accounting recogni-
tion of the investments in associated companies, and other permanent investments in which there is no control, joint control or significant 
influence.

FRS C-8 “Intangible assets” - It sets forth the valuation, presentation and disclosure standards for the initial and subsequent recognition of 
the intangible assets acquired on an individual basis or through a business acquisition, or internally generated in the normal course of busi-
ness.  This FRS supersedes Statement C-8 “Intangible assets”, effective until December 31, 2008.

FRS D-8 “Share-based payments” - It stipulates the standards for the recognition of share-based payments.  This FRS supersedes IFRS-2 
“Share-based-payments” issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards Board applicable on a supplementary basis in Mexico.

José H. Madero                                                                                                                                                                      Gustavo Cárdenas
Chief Executive Officer                                                                                                                                                                      Chief Financial Officer



Investor Relations:
Gustavo Cárdenas Aguirre
Tel.: (81) 8152 1500
Fax (81) 8152 15 84
E.: ir@autlan.com.mx
E.: gustavo.cardenas@autlan.com.mx

Stock Market
Bolsa Mexicana de Valores

Ticker Symbol
AUTLAN B

This annual report may contain references to the future performance of Minera Autlán, which should only be considered as estimates made in good 
faith by the Company. These references reflect management’s expectations and are based on the assumptions and information available at a given 
moment in time, so are subject to future events, risks and unknown factors that may affect the Company’s results.

D
es

ig
n:

 m
au

ric
io

@
bo

rt
on

i.n
et

 • 
Pr

in
tin

ed
: F

ue
rz

a 
G

rá
fic

a

Production: 
Marketing Department
Tel. (55) 52629001
Fax. (55) 52629044
E.: mkt@autlan.com.mx

Financial Highlights

Message from the Chairman

Message from the Chief Executive Officer

Economic Outlook

Mining

Ferroalloys

Commercial Activities

Human Resources

Sustainable Development and Social Responsibility

STERRA Hotel

Financial Results

Annual Report by the Chairman of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors

Annual Report by the Chairman of the Corporate Practices Committee to the Board of Directors 

Corporate Governance

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Income

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders Equity

Consolidated Statement of  Cash Flow

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Financial Position

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6

8

12

17

21

23

27

30

32

37

38

40

42

44

45

46

48

49

50

51

52

CONTENTS



our history
1953/2008

ANNUAL REPORT 2008

®

Corporate Headquarters
Av. Pedro Ramírez Vázquez 200-10, San Pedro Garza García, N.L. 66269

Tel.: 52 (81) 8152 1500, Fax 52 (81) 8152 1584
pr@autlan.com.mx     www.autlan.com.mx

A Grupo Ferrominero Company

®

M
I

N
E

R
A

 
A

U
T

L
Á

N
 

•
 

A
N

N
U

A
L

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 

2
0

0
8




